# REPORT ON NATIONAL CATHOLIC HEALTH SERVICE (NCHS) 10<sup>TH</sup> ANNUAL CONFERENCE

DATE: 16<sup>TH</sup> – 19<sup>TH</sup> OCTOBER, 2012

VENUE: ANITA HOTEL, EJISU

# **Contents**

1.	INTRODUCTION	3
1.:	1 Organization	3
1.:	2 Accommodation	3
2.0	0 DESIGN OF PROGRAMME	4
	2.1 Eucharistic Celebration	4
	2.2 Welcome Address & Official Opening	4
	2.3 Fraternal Messages	4
	2.3.1 Highlights of Speech by Guest speaker	5
	2.3.2 Director health Directorate's speech	5
	2.3.3 Speech by Episcopal Chairman of Health	5
	2.4 Awards	6
	2.5 Exhibitions	7
	2.6 Technical Sessions	7
	2.6.1 Session One: Lean Approach	7
	2.6.2 Session Two: Promoting Patient Safety	9
	2.6.3 Session Three: Financial Sustainability	9
	2.7 Abstract Presentation: Poster and Oral	9
	2.8 Dinner	10
	2.9 Conclusion	10

#### REPORT ON NATIONAL CATHOLIC HEALTH SERVICE (NCHS) 10<sup>TH</sup> ANNUAL CONFERENCE

Theme: Deepening the Performance Improvement and Sustainability Agenda within the NCHS

### 17th – 18th OCTOBER 2012, ANITA HOTEL, KUMASI

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

The conference of the NCHS is an annual gathering of all Catholic health institutions in the country. The purpose of the conference is to bring together all health workers and stakeholders to share in the progress, assess performance and challenges whilst building on the gains made to affect policy in providing quality health care. This year's conference brought together about two hundred participants from all the catholic health institutions.

#### 1.1 Organization

The 10<sup>th</sup> Annual Conference was hosted in the Kumasi Province under the auspices of the Executive Director of Health for the Kumasi Province, Mr. Chris Sappor and supported by the Executive Secretaries for the Goaso, Konongo-Mapmpong, Obuasi, Sunyani and Techiman Dioceses.

This year's conference unlike the previous years was outsourced to Oasis Generation Limited, working in active collaboration with Abigail Yayah and Mr. George Adjei from the DoH. The new idea that was tested last year, where participants made advanced payment of the conference fee into the DoH bank account was once again repeated. A few of the participants however made their payments on the conference day.

#### 1.2 Accommodation

Anita Hotel where the conference was hosted accommodated 44% of the 175 registered participants. Other nearby hotels used and the corresponding percentage of participants hosted is as follows: Treasure Land (13%), Mckeown Hotel (10.9%), Tusand (6%), Palfina (5%), Royal Basin (5%), Fausamed (5%), Viki Party(4%), Camp Martins (3.4%), Asantewaa Hotels (2%) and Maple Wool (1%).

Some of the participants who were hosted in the other hotels were not pleased with the hotel reservation and shuttling arrangement made for them. Some of their concerns for example were that they were sent to hotels where there were no rooms available for them, only for them to be stranded late into the night still searching for rooms and resorting to put up with acquaintances on the first night.

#### 2.0 DESIGN OF PROGRAMME

#### 2.1 Eucharistic Celebration

The Conference begun with the Holy Mass celebrated and con-celebrated by Most Rev Gabriel Anokye, Archbishop of Kumasi Archdiocese and Most Rev. Joseph Afrifah Agyekum respectively. In the Homily, the celebrant related the ills we see in society today to the attitude of some Christians in the era of Paul, stressing that the attitude against which Paul in the Second Reading was admonishing the believers is what we see in our day. Christians have not done good to the country he said, we intellectuals have not helped our country, we misanalyze the truth to the detriment of the ordinary person. 'We should stand for the truth', the Archbishop said, ' and 'as health workers, we need to show the fruits of the Spirit in our work- Love, Joy, Peace, Patience, Kindness, Goodness, Gentleness, Faithfulness and Self control.'

The Opening Ceremony was graced with the presence of dignitaries from the religious bodies-Archbishop of Kumasi Archdiocese, Episcopal Chairman of Health, Chancellor for Konongo-Mampong Diocese and other religious congregations; government institutions- the Ashanti Regional Minister's representative; NCHS Partners- Komfo Anokye Teaching Hospital, Christian Health Association of Ghana, Ghana Health Service, Ministry of Health, National Health Insurance Authority; and members of the traditional houses- the Queenmother of Ejisu and other Chiefs and elders.

#### 2.2 Welcome Address & Official Opening

The Archdiocesan Health Service Director for Kumasi Diocese welcomed all present and stated that the annual conference has improved its significance over the period noting the theme for the conference speaks it all. The conference was opened and chaired by the Episcopal Chairman and Bishop of Koforidua Diocese, Most Rev Joseph Agyekum Afrifah.

#### 2.3 Fraternal Messages

There were a couple of fraternal messages from CHAG, GHS, traditional chief of Ejisu, National Health Insurance Authority, Komfo Anokye Teaching Hospital, and the Ashanti Regional Minister.

Speaker after speaker commended the NCHS for organizing the conference to assess performance and also for playing a leading role in providing health care to the peripheries of the country. Saint Martin's Hospital, Agroyesum, was cited as an examplorer for its free surgery services to patients in that community The partners bemoaned the delay in NHIS claims and the negative impact of capitation on some health institutions. The stakeholders pledged their support to continue to partner with the NCHS and the need for continuous

dialogue to smoothen the rough edges of capitation to improve health care delivery in the country. They pronounced their blessings adding that the activities of NCHs will never be in vain.

#### 2.3.1 Highlights of Speech by Guest speaker

In his remarks the guest speaker for the conference stated that the NCHS is a big partner to the GHS in health care delivery, noting that the theme of the conference is an indication of no room for complacency. He noted the following:

- Capitation grant favors big hospital and not clinics; He charged the NCHS to work in this area
- More people are attracted to work in faith based institutions than Government institutions as such packages should be more attractive
- NCHS performs better than GHS institutions
- NCHS have strengths and as such should be utilized.
- Invest more in critical staff especially nurses and doctors

#### His speech highlighted the following Challenges with NCHS facilities

- Emergency preparedness is very week in NCHS facilities
- The above facilities are been manned by low skill staff
- thus conference of this nature should push NCHS forward to strengthen and deepen its performance in health care delivery

#### 2.3.2 Director health Directorate's speech

His speech centered on the NCHS maintaining its unique identity and the active support of donors, increase number in service data, QI work recognized locally and internationally in reducing U5 death. Moving forward, the Lean approach will be used to provide health care.

#### 2.3.3 Speech by Episcopal Chairman of Health

He commended the NCHS for a good job done over the period and urged all to keep it up. He indicated that the Bishop's conference charged the NCHS to revamp the PPP to eliminate waste in the system and within the first year of its operations, it had achieved 25% profit. He commended the task force and all for supporting the PPP. He however charged all the clinics heads to support the program

#### He suggested that:

- All NCHS staff should be well catered for
- Urged health workers to bring their skills to bear and be willing to help each other

- The role of the chaplain should be an integral part in health care delivery
- o The entire hospital system should provide holistic care to the patient
- NCHS should extend its services to other areas and take advantage of ICT in providing quality
- health care
- Need to maintain catholic identity and teach the next generation the ethics of the church
- Quality improvement introduced into the hospitals have saved lives especially U5 and this should extend to cover other areas

He noted the following unintended consequences/challenges

- Relationship with GHS at some hierarchy is impending progress of work at some health institutions
- Mistrust among health workers. Role of health workers should not be seen as competitors but to compliment
- o conflict and rivalry between NCHS facilities and GHS in upper west and Volta region

He made a passionate appeal to government to rehabilitate and complete the theaters in Jirapa and Damango hospitals

He expressed his dissatisfaction about capitation grant and wondered if any evaluation was done before its nationwide scale up. Asked the directors to look into the claims system so it does not collapse the NCHS clinics

#### 2.4 Awards

Awards were given to deserving staff-both junior and senior categories and honorary awardsfor their hard work and dedication to the Service.

Honorary Awardees include:

- St Laeticia Agatha Ofoma from St Edward Clinic, Dwinyama
- Sr. Maria Erwina, S.Sp.S, Chief Accountant at St. Joseph's Clinic and Maternity Home, Kwaho Tafo
- Dr. Martin Kwadwo Attu, Medical Director at Holy Family Hospital, Berekum
- Sr. Juana Leonarda Garrido Marquez of Our Lady of Rocio Clinic and Nutritional Rehabilitation Centre, Walewale.

Best worker from the Senior and Junior Staff Categories went to Mrs. Alice Odoom-Poku, a nurse manager at St. Francis Xavier Hospital, Assin Fosu and Mr. Peter Takyi Acheampong, a Principal Executive Officer, Holy Family Hospital, Techiman respectively.

This year, the NCHS for the first time awarded dioceses which have hosted the annual conference in the past. The list is as follows:

1st Annual NCHS CONFERENCE, Year 2003: Sekondi-Takoradi Diocese

2<sup>nd</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2004: Koforidua Diocese

3<sup>rd</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2005: Wa Diocese

4<sup>th</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2006: Kumasi Archdiocese

5<sup>th</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2007: Cape Coast Archdiocese

6<sup>th</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2008: Tamale Archdiocese

7<sup>th</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2009: Ho Diocese

8th Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2010: Navrongo-Bolgatanga Diocese

9<sup>th</sup> Annual NCHS Conference, Year 2011: Sunyani Diocese

#### 2.5 Exhibitions

A host of pharmaceutical companies were invited to exhibit their products at the annual conference as has been the practice for some years now. The exhibition affords the participants, especially the hospital and clinic managers to meet with the suppliers of both medical and non-medical consumables. Out of the 15 invited exhibitors, only six companies actually registered and exhibited their products. The exhibiters include *Health Access Network, Unicom Limited, Aryton Drugs, Tobinco Pharmacy, Vicdoris, Pharmaceuticals* and *Phinat Pharmacy.* 

#### 2.6 Technical Sessions

Presentations were made in three sessions on the topics: The Lean Approach, Patient Safety & Financial Sustainability. Participants were grouped into three with each group rotating through each of the sessions.

#### 2.6.1 Session One: Lean Approach

This session was led by Dr. Patrick Yamoah, a Quality Improvement Advisor and the Medical Director at Mercy Women's Centre, Mankessim. He started by saying,

".....Hospitals, especially Mission Hospital, are very wasteful, too wasteful...."

He explained that the NCHS is focusing on a paradigm shift and a systematic way of eliminating waste so as to improve quality care in all the health institutions. The lean approach goes beyond the traditional way of problem solving- naming, shaming and blaming. It rather opens up to the fact that 'anyone can make a mistake' and encourages and supports open reporting of mistakes and goes through the process of root cause problem analysis.

The take home message on the lean approach is that, it

- Eliminates waste
- Improves quality
- Reduces costs
- Delights customers
- Improves employee satisfaction
- Increases safety

His presentation sparked the following discussions

- Wastage in the ward: since management doesn't really track who is using for example
  the gloves, how much of it is being used and how it is stored, etc, management tends to
  lose a lot of money due to mismanagement of medical consumables. With the lean
  approach, the way forward is to 'get the right person to do the right job to avoid waste',
  participants concluded.
- It came up strongly that the focus should not only be the *lean approach* but *functional lean approach*. And cutting down of waste should be the duty of management.
- A question was asked if management ensures daily scheduling of task to cut down waste in the system. Responses from participants indicated that daily scheduling is not applicable to all the facilities due to shortage of staff noting also that, training institutions send student nurses but their services are not fully utilized.
- The issue also came up that some facilities have the 'privilege' of getting student nurses all the time, sometimes in *excess*, and again sometimes even to the neglect of other institutions and Participants would want the NCHS to look into it.

#### 2.6.2 Session Two: Promoting Patient Safety

This session was delivered by Dr. Ernest Asiedu, a Quality Improvement Advisor and the Cordinator for Community and Institutional Care Unit at the Health Directorate. He explained that, the NCHS' interest in strengthening Patient safety in our facilities is to prevent inadvertent harm to patients by understanding the causative factors, identifying risks and vulnerabilities and controlling them to provide the safest medical practice environment within all our institutions.

The emphasis here is to fix the system error whenever harm is done to a patient, rather than to apportion blame on an individual. Participants had the opportunity to discuss some of the hazards at their workplaces that can pose harm to the patients and staff, brainstorming some solutions to those underlying problems.

#### 2.6.3 Session Three: Financial Sustainability

Mr. Patrick Nomo, a finance manager at the Ministry of Health facilitated the session. He gave a general overview of what financial sustainability is, the determinants and steps to ensure financial sustainability.

• Financial sustainability is achieved when a business is able to deliver services to its clients at a price that covers their expenses and generates a profit.

Relating the above definition and discussion to the Catholic ethics and values of *pro poor*, Mr. Nomo explained that profit in this case would be referred to as *surplus* when the NCHS institutions cover their expenses and have that 'extra' money left.

Take home message on financial sustainability is

- Financial Sustainability requires accountability, planning and foresight.
- Sustainability is a process; not a destination
- In financially sustainable businesses, long term profitability takes priority over any short term gains.

#### 2.7 Abstract Presentation: Poster and Oral

This year's annual conference afforded the NCHS as a whole and specifically the facilities that have shown significant improvement in their work, the opportunity to showcase their work and buttress the strategic focus the NCHS has employed-using Continuous Quality Improvement to enhance service delivery. Six abstracts were selected for poster presentation and two for oral presentations. St Martin de Porres, Agomanya made the presentation on the success they have

achieved using QI methods to reduce their institutional Under 5 mortality. Mole Health Centre although not an NCHS facility, is one of the sites where the Project Fives Alive! Work is ongoing. The facility was therefore selected to make a presentation on how they have improved referral compliance for sick children from Mole Clinic to West Gonja Hospital.

The key message from both presentations was:

#### St Martin de Porres, Agomanya:

Improvement can occur when front line staff who provide care pay attention to their local data, analyze it and make informed decisions with the data. Leadership support and interest in QI activities tremendously motivates the QI team to commit to rapid cycle test which leads to improvement. The MDG 4 is attainable with the active involvement of the people who matter-the community, and the health providers.

#### Mole Health Centre:

More attention to family counselling and partnership with communities by health staff yields positive behaviours that can reduce child morbidity and mortality.

#### 2.8 Dinner

The whole conference ended on a lighter note with a dinner dance where the Episcopal Chairman of Health, the Director of the Health Directorate and all dignitaries present treated themselves to cheerful night, dancing, feasting and making merry.

#### 2.9 Conclusion

All activities carried out during the NCHS 10<sup>th</sup> Annual Conference expounded on the theme 'Deepening the Performance Improvement and Sustainability Agenda within the NCHS'. In all, the annual conference was a big success, with the active involvement of facility managers, health directorate staff and the top notch leadership of the NCHS. Delegates left with the message of working harder to build on the successes of the past, to improve on the health system now and ensure a sustained National Catholic Health Service.

Report by

Josephine Agyeman-Duah and Salomey Dery

#### ANNEX 1

# MESSAGE DELIVERED BY PROF.OHENE ADJEI, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE KOMFO ANOKYE TEACHING AT THE OPENING OF THE 10<sup>TH</sup> ANNUAL CONFERENCE OF THE NATIONAL CATHOLIC HEALTH SERVICE HELD ON 17<sup>TH</sup> OCTOBER 2012

The Episcopal bishop in charge of health of the catholic bishop conference of Ghana

The archbishop of the of the Kumasi Catholic Diocese

Chancellor, Konongo-Mampong Diocese

Director of the National Catholic Health Service

**Executive Director of CHAG** 

Institutional managers of Catholic health facilities

Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen

It is with the deepest sense of honour that I stand before such an august and distinguished gathering of healthcare providers and promoters in the country.

I am grateful to the organizers of the 10<sup>th</sup> Annual Conference of the National Catholic Health Service (NCHS) of Ghana for the kind invitation to me to be part of this all important conference.

Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen, permit me first of all to commend the NCHS for instituting this annual conference to periodically assess your performance so as to devise more effective strategies to optimize your drive for quality health care delivery in the country.

As the saying goes, an unexamined life is not worth living and it is appropriate that as health care providers, we commit ourselves to a culture of regular self appraisal and continuous improvement in the quality of services we provide.

Your theme for the , 'Deepening the Performance Improvement and Sustainability Agenda within the NCHS" therefore, most appropriate.

I have no doubt that a conference of this nature will provide the appropriate platform for the dispassionate treatment of the theme in order to engender continuous improvement in the commendable standard of care set by Catholic hospitals in the country.

Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen, the contributions of the Catholic Church to the steady but gradual improvement in the health status of Ghanaians over the years can never be discounted.

The Catholic Church, through the National Catholic Health Service, has to its credit decades of investments in the development of health facilities in the most deprived areas of Ghana.

As the leading health service provider in the peripheral areas of the country, the NCHS has played a leading role in making access to health care equitable and affordable to Ghanaians and must be commended for that.

As the leading advance health care provider and trainer in this part of the country, the Komfo Anokye Teaching Hospital (KATH) wishes to indicate its readiness to compliment the good work being done by the NCHS through a special partnership. Our two institutions need to leverage our relative strength in order to provide a continuum of healthcare services that the people of this country so much deserve.

Through a mutually arranged framework of collaboration, the NCHS and KATH can ensure a seamless provision of primary, secondary and tertiary health care services through exchange of best practices and capacity building initiatives.

The Komfo Anokye Teaching Hospital has extensive range of expertise and capabilities clinical care that can easily be transferred to the medical staff of NCHS institutions through this collaborative framework.

Notwithstanding the enviable gains made in the health sector of the country over the decades, a lot more needs to be done if we are to meet the targets set in the Millennium Development Goals on health. We definitely need to combine our resources if we are to improve and sustain the standards of health care delivery in Ghana.

It is my hope that in the months and year ahead, our two institutions will find a common ground for co-operation in order to further enhance the quality of services we render to the people of this country.

Your Grace The Archbihop in-charge of Health of the Catholic Bishop Conference of Ghana, the archbishop of the of the Kumasi Catholic Diocese, Distinguished Ladies and Gentlemen, before I bring my address to a close, permit to wish you the best of deliberations.

It is my prayer and hope that by the end of this three-day conference, you will have found the key to deepening the Performance Improvement and Sustainability Agenda of the National Catholic Health Service. I wish you a productive conference and may the Good Lord richly bless you for your attention. Thank you.

## PARTICIPANT LIST FOR THE SEMINARS

No	NAME	INSTITUTION	TELEPHONE	E-MAIL ADRESS
1	PATRICK YAMOAH	Mercy Women Centre	O244980609	yamoahpatrick@gmail.com
2	JAMES TOBIGA	Health Directorate	O244716997	jamestobiga@yahoo.com
3	HENRY NBINIIH	Diocesan Health service	O243717710	henrynbiniih@yahoo.com
4	MONARCH ADUHEM	D.H.S Wiaso	O244777824	
5	ALBERT ZINEYUH	St. Joseph Hospital Jurapa	O249339354	
6	SR. EVELYN OTCHERE-BOATENG	Mercy Women Centre	O244440795	evelynoboateng@yahoo.com
7	THERESA MORGAN	St. Anthony's Hospital Dzodze	O244013808	tresamorg@yahoo.com
8	NGMENKAARA SYLVIA	St. Dominic Hospital	O243924203	sngmenkaara@yahoo.com
9	BEATRICE NAMOALEY	St. Gerhard H/C Fielmuo	O242513643	
10	APPRAH YAW DULOSTA	Holy Family Hospital Nkaw.	O208870583	
11	PETER BAAPELE	West Gonja Hospital	O243950225	
12	GODWIN K. KATSRIKU	Comboni Hospital Sogakope	O244145039	comboni
13	REV. FR. BENJAMIN BENNEH	St. Theresa's Hospital Nkoranza	O201845767	benbkofi@yahoo.com
14	JOHN DERY	Mathin's Hospital Yesi	O209190811	
15	PATIENCE KESSE	St. Theresa's Clinic Obra.	O241811266	
16	SR. CLAUDIA SETORDJIE	St. Michael Clinic Ntronang	O243535450	smcm-ntg@yahoo.com
17	COMFORT KONADU	Abease P.H.C	O242323993	
18	AGANA A. EDWARD	Mathias Hospital yeji	O208457091	eanabila@yahoo.com
19	EMELIA AZAGLO	Mary Theresa Hospital	O246418687	emelixemef@yahoo.com
20	ZEGAH EZEKIEL	Mary Theresa Hospital	O246322869	wkmss@yahoo.com
21	KENNEDY NTIMA	Benito Memi H/C	O242331695	kennedyntim@yahoo.com
22	JOYCE DAM	St. Francis Xavie Hospital	O244029806	joycedam@yahoo.com
23	SR. HELEN SIMEON	Tuna Health Centre	O545229784	helensimeon@yahoo.com
24	SAMUEL OSEI YEBOAH	Mother of God H/C Esease	O20059057	hericanegh2006@yahoo.com
25	PATRICK NYAME BAAFI	Abease P.H.C	O249831187	baafinyame@yahoo.com
26	VITUS K.K	D.H.S Koforidua		dhskdua@hotmail.com
27	GENEVIEVE AGBOYO	Sacred Heart Hospital Abor	O243070175	geygey111@yahoo.com

No	NAME	INSTITUTION	TELEPHONE	E-MAIL ADRESS
28	SR. COMFORTASHINYO,SMMC	Mater Ecclesiae clnic Sokode	O243245645	comashinyo.smmc@yahoo.com
29	JONATHAN ALANGEA	D.O.H Tamale	O208890575	jalangea@gmail.com
30	MIDEWONA HARRIET	Anfoega Catholic Hosp.	O243019983	
31	GORDON DIIBUZIE	Nur. Mid.Training Coll.Jirapa	O209231079	dbazogordon@yahoo.com
32	GEORGINA AMANKWAH	st. Patrick's M.T.S	O243420199	georginanaamankwagh@ymail.com
33	JESSIE APPIAGYEI	HFNTC Nkawkaw	O208648629	jessieasiedua@yahoo.com
34	SALOME OSEI	Catholic Hosp. Bator	O242544785	
35	BISMARCK E.D DUFE	Sacred Heart Hospital Abor	O244851120	beddufe@gmail.com
36	SR. MARCELLA SIEBALLE	Nativity of our Lady H/C	O209023764	
37	DAKO-CHARWAY SOLOMON	St. Martin's Hosp. Agomanya	O244968514	charway2009@gmail.com
38	CLEMENT S. TENZAGH	D.H.S Bolga	O243220117	sctenzagh@gmail.com
39	EMMEU KANAWETEY	St. Martin De Porres Hosp.	O244545418	
40	AGATHA MWINBOM	St. Joseph Hospital Jirapa	O209256632	
41	BRO. AMBROSE DERY	St. Joseph Hosp. K'dua	O276867191	deryambrose@yahoo.com
42	SENYA KAFUI	St. Gregory Hosp.	O208733153	kafui2k1@hotmail.com
43	SR. ESTHER ADZAH	St. John's H/C Domeabra	O208149631	eeaadzah@yahoo.com
44	STEPHEN BONNAH	D.O.H	O208132270	apandangnah@yahoo.com
45	DOROTHY QUAY	D.O.H	O264745761	dorathydarky@gmail.com
46	GIDEON AGBEHIA	St. Michael's Mid. Train. School	O246396036	vascj2000@yahoo.com
47	CHRISTINE A. ADOWU	St. Patrick's Hospital	O246586911	
48	ELIZABETH M. AHIAMADJIE	St. Dominic Hospital	O244101758	emartimeahiamadjie@ymail.com
49	COMFORT A. ADAMU	St. Theresa H/C Zorko	O243389874	
50	FAUSTINA MANU	St. Gregory Cath. Hosp.	O243219946	stgregoryh@yahoo.com
51	BENJAMIN AWOPOLIMAGE	M.T.C Nkawkaw	O246044797	
52	NAOMI ADJEI	St. Francis Xavie Hospital	O244946376	naomij163 inc@yahoo.com
53	REV. SR. JOSEPHINE OTTAH	St. Anne Mat. Clinic Donyina	O248720348	josephineottah@yahoo.com
54	ADOLPH BARSAH	St. Anthony's Hospital	O243685082	ahbarsah@yahoo.com
55	JOSHUA KEWURA USSIF	St. Peter's H/C Ntobroso	O540204487	jakpajokes@yahoo.com
56	ALHASSAN SAMSON	West Gonja Hospital	O243705728	iicsam@yahoo.com

57	SR. LYDIA AMPONSAH	St. John's clinic &Mat. Ofoase	O246549583	
58	DORA LUMOR	st. Patrick's M.T.S	O244864660	mamadora2a@gmail.com
59	KYESE BRIDGET REBECCA	St. Mary's Hospital	O243489375	bridgetkyese@gmail.com
60	NABARESEH RAPHAEL	St. Joseph Nakolo	O200628254	mabaresoh@yahoo.com
61	ZELLE CRISPIN	St. John'S H/C	O248788836	zcrispin@rodatmail.com
62	JONAS A. AKPAKLI	NCHS,Tamele	O243284916	jaselasi@gmail.com
63	REV. SR. MAGDELENE TOFFEH	MMCH Kpando	0243315113	magdeleneto@yahoo.com
64	KWAME NSRAWUDI	Holy Family Hospital Brekum	O208237256	knsrawudi@rocketmail.com
65	VERONICA ADU TACHI	Holy Family Hospital Brekum	O208160993	
66	GERTRUDE MAASANGYIR	Holy Family Hospital Tech.	O243931539	gertrudemaasangyir@yahoo.com
67	DR. AKO CHARWAY SOLOMON	St. Martin's Hosp. Odumasi	O244968514	charway2009@gmail.com
68	THERESAH YEBOAH	St. Matin's Hosp. Odumasi	O249360775	thess325@yahoo.com
69	COMFORT DUMOO	Sacred Heart Hospital Abor	O246211666	
70	DONATUS ADALETEY	E.S ADHS Accra	O244786255	ddadaletey@yahoo.com
71	EUGENEOWUSU AFRIPIE	St. Michael Hospital	O244977248	luveusan@yahoo.com
72	JOHN MAWAH	D.H.S Off. Takoradi	O244527004	jimmem2004@yahoo.com
73	DR. ARNOLD OSEI-WUSU	Catholic Hosp. Bator	O244623252	aoseiwuu200@yahoo.com
74	SR. ATEPOR-GADAGOE STELLA	Anfoega Catholic Hosp.	O243715355	steporal@gmail.com
75	FR. GREGORY AMPONSAH-NKANSAH	DHS Konongo-Mampong	O249110339	kofigregory@yahoo.co.uk
76	PETER YEBOAH	DHS Gaoso	O244136209	<pre>yebpeter@yahoo.com</pre>
77	MOSES AKRUGU	St. Vincent Clinic	O268961305	mokrugu@yahoo.com
78	HAPPY TAY-SAKU	Comboni Hospital Sogakope	O244813550	
79	DR. DZIWORNU KUWUTSOR	Mary Theresa Hospital	O206300300	dkuwutsor@hotmail.com
80	SR. FAUSTINA ANKWA	St. Joseph Hospital Nkaw.	O244185938	anafausty2@yahoo.com
81	DZIGBEDE CAESAR	St. Joseph Hospital Nkaw.	O242627386	caesardzigbede@yahoo.com
82	SR. M. LAETITIA OFOMA	St. Edward H/C	O244823473	laetyofoma@yahoo.com
83	ISSIFU ISSAKA	St. Martin's Hosp. Agroyesum	O206936899	
84	DUMS ALLOTEY	St.Theresa Hosp. Nandom	O242126403	demnisallotey@yahoo.com
85	ULLO FRANCIS ASSISI	St. Theresa Hosp. Nandom	O249846097	dsswuf@yahoo.com
86	MARY M. MAABIAS	St. Theresa Hosp. Nandom	O209410284	

		1,	l	1
87	JOEL QUARM	Fr. Thomas Rooney Hosp.	O242144102	freghabeiku@gmail.com
88	SR. ANNE DEEFA	St.Andrews Clinic Kordiabe	O244886193	standrewsck@yahoo.com
89	SR.MAMINA YENUWU	Mathias Hospital yeji	O209149627	mathiahospital@yahoo.com
90	SR. VERONICA APPIAH	Archdiocesan H. Pharma.	O244542504	akyaa12@yahoo.com
91	SR. MARY ANNETTE EJIKE	Madonna Clinic Ejisu	O244926249	
92	SR COMFORT M. APEDZI	St.John of God Hosp. D/ Nkwa.	O208194629	mic.apedzi@yahoo.com
93	GADZEY S. LIONEL	St. Martins De Porre	O208378057	slgadzey@yahoo.com
94	DOROTHY ABEREKERA	Martyrs Of Uganda	O201393349	
95	EDWARD OWUSU	St. Louis H/C	O201703530	owusuedward38@yahoo.com
96	LAWRENCE TWUMASI	H.C.H.C TDI (FIJAI)	O547777627	
97	MONICA NKRUMAH	NMTC-Berekum	O246526097	monicaue27@yahoo.co.uk
98	DAMBA RASHID	Catholic PHC Bole	O246526097	dambarashid@yahoo.co.uk
99	MARGARET ACQUAAH	Physiotherapist	O204601101	everlast45@gmail.com
100	SR. CLOTHILDA NEN-NOME	Tamale polyclinic	O243882576	clothildafmm@yahoo.com
101	ALICE ODOOM-POKU	St. Francis Xavie Hospital	O244132927	
102	AYEGRE MATHIAS ANABA	St. Gregory	O244593935	sobona@yahoo.co.uk
103	SR. ROSSA DANSY	Holy Family Berekum	O208250810	daisyrosia@yahoo.com
104	JOSEPH WOEGAH	Sacred Heart Hospital Abor	O240525357	woejoskoo@yahoo.com
105	SR. AGNES AMEVOR	St. Lucas clinic Chindiri	O209322961	aagnesanthony@yahoo.com
106	SR. LUCY DUMENU	St. Joseph Hosp. Nkwata	O243607872	idumenu@yahoo.co.uk
107	PHILIP QUARSHIE	Notre Dame clinic	O244653956	quarshiephilip@yahoo.com
108	FRANCIS ASHAGBLEY	PFA	O244856120	fkashegbley@yahoo.co.uk
109	CHARLES D. MENSAH	St. John of God Hosp.	O208082498	davecdb@yahoo.com
110	MARY BIBIANA NAAEKE	St. John of God Hosp.	O242089953	bnaaeke@yahoo.com
111	SR. CHRISTINA POGBEYI	DHS Damango	O243507423	pogbeyin@yahoo.com
112	CMFORT BOATEY	St. Anthony H/c	O247033303	connieboatey@yahoo.com
113	CECILIA MANI ADDAI	Sacred Heart	O209757756	ceciliamaddai@yahoo.com
114	SR. MARY FRIEDA AGBLE	Madonna Clinic Besease	O243933157	sistermaryfrieda@gmail.com
115	MARGARET BIRAGO	St. Michael Hosp. Pramso	O267881818	biragomargraret@yahoo.com
116	SR. JUANA TAVIDO	D.L.O.R Clinic Walewale	O242081401	santanabolga@yahoo.com

117	EMMANUEL KUMAH	West Gonja Hospital	O244984405	ababiohemmanuel@yahoo.com
118	DR. SARFO ASANTE	St Michael Hosp.	O246508415	docsarfo@yahoo.com
119	WEIN JACOB MAAYEB	St. Martin's clinic -Biu	O204916078	weinmaayeb@yahoo.com
120	TEMEKUU JOHNBOSCO	Immaculate Conception	O205760814	temekuuj@yahoo.com
121	AYIYA RICHARD	St. TheresaH/C Zorko	O243929288	
122	JOHN ATADAH	St. Martins De Porre	O276854433	jonatade@yahoo.com
123	MAHAMA S. SAMUEL	St. Lucy Polyclinic Tamale	O208727021	samuelmahama@yahoo.com
124	BRO. JOHN BOSCO BONGNEA	D.H.S WA	O243837484	wadhservice@yahoo.com
125	BEATRICE AGBETORWOSOR	Fr. Thomas Rooney Hosp.	O208957102	
126	LAMBON PETER JABIR	O.T.C.Nsawam	O242777863	ipeterjabir@yahoo.co.uk
127	JOHN KWAKU ASOMAH BROWN	St. Mary's Hospital Drobo	O200650067	asomahbrownjohn@yahoo.com
128	MENSAH THOMAS	St. John H/C Dmeabra	O549668110	mensahthom@yahoo.com
129	JAMES AMEWUUDAH	Mater Ecclesiae clnic Sokode	O249441188	jameswuudah@yahoo.com
130	SR. MARY ASSUMPATA	St. martins Hosp. Agroyesum	O244293323	maryazu66@gmail.com
131	MUKADO	Funsi H/C	O243668535	
132	PHILIP DIAME	Catholic Hosp. Bator	O244886700	pdpdiame6@gmail.com
133	SR. MARY CATHERINE AKORDOR	Catholic clinic Akim Swedru	O244854070	cateenyo@yahoo.com
134	SR. BEATRICE GRODZ	St. Lucas H/C Wiaga	O207438399	beatassps@gmail.com
135	SR. DIANA OFOSU	St. joseph Clinic Tafo	O243164153	dianahssps@yahoo.com
136	ADJEI BERNARD	Holy Family Hosp. nkw	O244154044	bernardadjei254@yahoo.com
137	EVANS KOFI AGBENO	Fr. Thomas Rooney Hosp.	O208253234	ogbeno@yahoo.com